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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9544 l-«00-S52:3345 Ext 9544
Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

August 5, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices. Division for Behavioral Health, on
behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a contract with
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association d/b/a New Hampshire Training
Institute on Addictive Disorders (VC#TBD). Concord, New Hampshire in the amount of $461,900
for the provision of a high-quality competency and skills-based training program with the option
to renew for up to two (2) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through
June 30, 2022. 36.74% Federal Funds, 15.58% General Funds, and 47.68% Other Funds
(Governors Commission Funds).

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,119

2022 ' 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,119

Subtotal $220,238

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831

Subtotal $211,662

The Deparlmenlof Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-92-920510-33960000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Total

Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $15,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $0

Subtotai $15,000

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year
Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number

Total

Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $15,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920570040 $0

Subtotal $15,000

Total $461,900

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide a high-quality competency and skills-based training
program that addresses the needs of the State's prevention, early-intervention, treatment, and
recovery supports workforce. The Contractor will deliver high quality training to improve the ability
of Alcohol and Other Drug supports and service providers to provide quality, outcome-supported
services to individuals and families.

New Hampshire lacks the workforce capacity to provide needed Alcohol and Other Drug
prevention, early-intervention, treatment, and recovery support services to nf>eet the growing need
for services. High turnover rates, worker shortages, an aging workforce, inadequate
compensation, and stigma have created a workforce crisis in the field.

The continued improvement and transformation of the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care
system and integration with primary and behavioral healthcare depend entirely on a workforce
that is adequate in size, as well as trained and supported, to meet the needs of individuals who
seek substance use disorder treatment services. Additionally, the necessary knowledge base for
providing Alcohol and Other Drug services has increased dramatically over the past several years.

In 2019, the NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, in partnership vwth service
providers and other key stakeholders, identified data-driven priorities to comprehensively address
New Hampshire's addiction crisis. The three (3)-year plan provides a framework to move New
Hampshire forward in a direction that creates an outcomes-based approach that continues to
build on well-coordinated efforts across the Continuum of Care System.
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The Department will monitor contracted services through regularly scheduled meetings, the
submission and review of monthly program reports and by using the following performance
measures;

•  The Contractor will collect a completed evaluation sheet from no less than 85% of
participants who attend a training event.

•  The Department will monitor performance of the contract by trainee satisfaction survey
results that reflect an 85% or higher rating of trainee satisfaction through evaluation
results submitted.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a Request for
Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 5/26/2020 through 6/24/2020.
The Department received two (2) responses that were reviewed and scored by a team of qualified
individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1, Revisions to
Form P-37, General Provisions. Subsection 1.1, of the attached contract, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council
approval.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, New Hampshire's Alcohol
and Other Drug workforce may be unaware of the most current and efficacious information and
research on support services and treatment for substance use disorders. The result could lead
to the provision of substandard treatment for people with alcohol and other drug issues and may
result in a workforce that is unable to fulfil continuing education credits needed to meet, complete
and sustain licensure and certification requirements.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFD/y^93.959/FAlN#T!083041. CFDA #93.788/FAIN T1081685. and
CFDA 93.243/FAIN SP020796

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Scoring Sheet

Training for Alcohol and Other Drug
(AGO) Workforce

RFP Name

Bidder Name

1.
Altarum

2.
NHADACA

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN

RFP Number

Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

390 258

390 328

390 0

390 0

390 0

390 0

390 0

Reviewer Names

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Heidi Young, Prgrm. Planning and
Review Spec.

Olivia Afshar, Program Asst I

Linda Parker, Clinical Services
Prgrm. Spec.lV

Shannon Quinn, Program Spec.lV

Laurie Heath, Busn. Admin



FORM NUMBER M7(version (2/11/2019)

Subjeci:_Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Workforce (RFP-202l-BDAS-0S-TRAlN-Oi)

Notice: This agreement and all or its aiiachmcnts shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council Tor approval. Any information thai is private, conndcntial or proprietary must
be clearly Identifled to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.I State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

JSewJJampsbire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors
Association d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute
on Addictive Disordcre

1.4 Contractor Address

130 Pembroke Road, Suite !00
Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)225-7060

1.6 Account Number

05-095-092-920510-3382

05-095-092-920510-3384

05-095-092-920510-3395

05-095-092-920510-7040

1.7 Completion Date l

June 30.2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$461,900

1.9 Comracling Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractoc Signatorv

1.13 Stale Agency Signature » .

l"^ Datc:/73^;iO
1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

I.I.S Approval by the N.H. Oeparinienl of Administration. Division of Personnel 0/ oppticahle)

Bv: Director, Cn-

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Porm. Snbstanec and FxecutionJ Of appUcnhlc)

08/10/20

1.17 Approval by the Governor and n.rcculive CVunvil (ifupplicahk-)

G&C Item number G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("Slate"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
worlc or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hercunder, shall
become effective on the date the Oovcmor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block t.l7,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTectivc Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTectivc Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
ConUactor. and in the event that this Agreement does not become,
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwiih-standing any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any slate or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hercunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in (hat Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price,
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hercunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In cormcction with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor

.shall.comply.wiih all.fcderal.cxcculivcorders.rulcs, regulations,
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as-the
State or (he United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall al.su comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex. handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action tu
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Slates
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of (his
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved In the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative, in the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8, EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder {"Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days aflcr giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Stale

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agree nKiU.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
Information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, siirveys. maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and dociimcnts. all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shad be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires

. prior written approval of;,the .State.

determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement a.s breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shal I be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of (he Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Norwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Slate's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting OfTtcer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor i-s in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor ah
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assignment/delegatjon/subcontracis.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the Slate at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, bcconxrs the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by (he
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Slate.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. indemnification. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omission of the
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Coniracior, or subcontraccors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State siiall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant' in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination oifthis Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its, sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80®/o of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy fontts and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Slate ofNew Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificaicfs) of
in.suraiKC for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor. ccrtiricatc(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of eacli
insurance policy. The ccrtificatc(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warranl.'s that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("IVorkers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofof Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rencwalfs) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The Stale
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subconiTactor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by ccnified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assign.";. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the partie.s to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of.this Agrccmcnt shall.be brought.and-

..maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have -
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any ihird parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions sci forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In ihc event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction lo be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counicrparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and required
governmental approval.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same .contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage, the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

New Hampshire AJcohol and Drug Abuse Exhibit A
Counselors Association d/b/a
New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders
RFP-2021-8DAS-05-TRAIN-01 Page 1 of 1
Cl«DHHSn2*019
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure services in this agreement are available to:

1.1.1. The Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care workforce,
statewide.

1.1.2. Professionals providing services specific to the Partnership for Success
(PFS) grant, as identified by the Department Including, but not limited to:

1.1.2.1. Student Assistance Professionals.

1.1.2.2. Substance Misuse Prevention professionals.

1.1.3. Individuals providing services specific to the State Opioid Response
(SCR) grant-as-identified-by the Department-including,-but-not limlted to:-

1.1.3.1. SCR grant-funded contractors.

1.1.3.2. Families including, but not limited to, the nuclear family,
grandparents and other relatives impacted by substance use
disorder (SUD).

1.1.3.3. Programs working with children impacted by familial substance
use.

1.2. The Contractor shall administer a .multi-component training program which
includes, but is not limited to:

1.2.1. Developing a training calendar that offers a systematic approach to
meeting credentialing and continuing education requirements across the
ADD Continuum of Care system, that includes the following training
suites:

1.2.1.1. Prevention:

1.2.1.2. Intervention;

1.2.1.3. Treatment; and

1.2.1.4. Recovery.

1.2.2. Planning, coordinating and providing training opportunities; both irr-
person and through eLearning platforms; which cover core, intermediate,
and advanced levels of instruction; are approved by the Department; and
include, but are not limited to:

1.2.2.1. In state fiscal year 2021:

1.2.2.1.1. A minimum of 58 live, professional development training
events with in-person and virtual attendance options,
including, but not limited to skill building practice series and

New Hampshire Alcohoi and Drug Abuse Exhibit B Contractor Initials
Counselor. Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders rii t /
RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01 Page 1 of 9 Date VN/ZCZO



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

targeted training for emerging issues, with at least six (6)
being offered in the northern regions of NH.

1.2.2.1.2. A minimum of five (5) new, on-demand webinars, added to
the existing library of webinars.

1.2.2.1.3. A minimum of four (4) kinship family trainings.
(

1.2.2.1.4. A minimum of six (6) Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
trainings, as detailed In Subsection 1.3.

1.2.2.2. In state fiscal year 2022:

1.2.2.2.1. A minimum of 54 live, professional development training
events with in-person and virtual attendance options
including, but not limited to skill building practice series and
targeted_trainingTor_emerging.issues,_with.atJeast.six.(6)-
being offered in the northern regions of NH.

1.2.2.2.2. A minimum of five (5) new, on-demand webinars, added to
the existing library of webinars.

1.2.2.2.3. A minimum of eight (8) Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services trainings, as detailed in Subsection 1.3.

1.2.3. Providing participants with training materials.

1.2.4. Ensuring training is designed for different adult learning styles and levels
of knowledge.

1.2.5. Ensuring training is provided by qualified presenters, as approved by the
Department.

1.2.6. Providing integrated, eLearning tools, when appropriate.

1.2.7. Providing participants with approved Continuing Education Credits,
applicable to the training audience and certification needs.

1.2.8. Providing participants with continuous access to a library of a minimum
of 50 on-demand webinars.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide the training space, materials, and logistical
support for two (2) trainings on a quarterly basis, at no cost to participants,
utilizing trainers provided by the Department, which include:

1.3.1. The Initial Training on Addiction and Recovery, a six (6) hour, in-person
training.

1.3.2. Families and Addiction, a three (3) hour, in-person training.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure training sessions are consistent with the required
professional standards and core competency needs of the workforce which
include, but are not limited to. relevant training for:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce ■

EXHIBIT B

1.4.1. Certified Prevention Specialists (CPS).

1.4.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors (LADC).

1.4.3. Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors (MLADC).

1.4.4. Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW).

1.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with subject matter experts, as directed^and
identified by the Department, to develop and improve training curricula and
content to meet the needs of the target audiences for PFS and SCR grants.

1.6. The Contractor shall monitor attendance at each event to ensure individuals

attend for the full length of the training in order to obtain continuing education
'certificates which includes, but is not limited to:

1.6.1. Ensuring positive verification of attendance at each event for each
partlclpanfuslnga'method'approved'by the'Department. ^

1.6.2. Complying with the requirements of the New Hampshire Department of
Information Technology for tracking online attendance.

1.7. The Contractor shall identify and engage qualified presenters to deliver
training opportunities, as approved by the Department.

1.8. The Contractor shall market training events utilizing methods approved by the
Department which include, but are not limited to:

1.8.1. Maintaining an email list and sending email notifications to the AOD
workforce and identified training audiences.

1.8.2. Maintaining and publishing an events calendar on the Contractor's
website.

1.8.3. Publishing and distributing a newsletter to the AOD workforce and
identified training audiences on a quarterly basis.

1.9. The Contractor shall develop and utilize an evaluation plan, process and
tool(s) to evaluate each training event, as approved by the Department and
in accordance with each accrediting body, that includes, but is not limited to:

1.9.1. Collecting and analyzing participant evaluation responses for each
training session.

1.9.2. Compiling and analyzing aggregate data from evaluation responses no
less than every six (6) months.

1.9.3. Sharing evaluation data with the Department to ensure the program is
meetings its goals and for continuous quality improvement of the training
program.

1.10. The Contractor shall utilize a learning management system to monitor and
manage the training program. The system shall comply with DolT
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

requirements and include, but not be limited to:

1.10.1. An Administrative Dashboard that includes, but is not limited to, the ability
to:

1.10.1.1. Receive and track information that includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.1.1.1. Registration and payment for trainings.

1.10.1.1.2. Date and title for each training session.

1.10.1.1.3. Number of registrations, attendees and individuals on
waitlists for individual trainings.

1.10.1.1.4. Information for each participant, including:

1.10.1.1.4.1. Name of participant;

1r10rlTl;4:2: Job title;

1.10.1.1.4.3. Name of participant's agency or organization;

1.10.1.1.4.4. Mailing Address;

1.10.1.1.4.5. Email address; and

1.10.1.1.4.6. Fees paid by participant and/or agency.

1.10.1.2. Send and receive training evaluations to and from participants.

1.10.2. A Participant Portal that includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.2.1. The ability to register and pay for training.

1.10.2.2. Personal profiles that allow participants to access training
summaries and continuing education certificates based on
attendance.

1.11. The Contractor shall work closely with the Department to support current and
emerging initiatives for improving the State's system of care including, but not
limited to:

1.11.1. Developing training materials on particular topics for target populations,
as needs arise, at the request of the Department.

1.11.2. Adjusting activities and staffing to meet Department needs and the needs
of the workforce.

1.11.3. Updating training topics and classes as scientific evidence evolves.

1.12. The Contractor shall provide access to training for Bureau of Drug and
Alcohol Services employees, when space is available, for any scheduled
training session, at no additional cost.

1.13. The Contractor shall Identify the needs of the workforce and ensure trainings
offered are not duplicative of existing trainings offered through other venpes
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

by;

1.13.1. Meeting regularly with the Department to seek Input on training needs in
support of ongoing initiatives and other emerging needs.

1.13.2. Collecting and analyzing participant evaluation feedback for individual
trainings and on a bi-annual basis.

1.13.3. Soliciting feedback from participants, professionals and key stakeholders
regarding the training needs of the NH ADD workforce.

1.13.4. Participating in workforce development education and training
committees to learn what other agencies are intending to offer and to
inform the agencies of the training plans.

1.13.5. Attending licensing and certification board meetings to identify provider
needs — — __—

171376. Actively engaging in"the planning of collaborative conferences.

1.14. The Contractor shall administer a process to award scholarships in an
amount not less than $10,000 for each state fiscal year to NH AOD
Continuum of Care service providers to attend training events, as approved
by the Department, which may include, but are not limited to events
sponsored by:

1.14.1. AdCare Educational Institute of New England.

1.14.2. The New England Addiction Technology Transfer Center (ATTC).

1.14.3. Prevention Technology Transfer Center (PTTC) Network.

The Contractor shall administer a process to award scholarships in the
amount of not less than $2,000 for state fiscal year 2021 to individuals for
whom cost to attend SOR-funded trainings is a barrier, ensuring final
determination of awards is approved by the Department.

The Contractor shall maintain a web presence for the trainings provided on
the Contractor's website, w\A/w.nhadaca.org, which shall include, but is not
limited to;

1.16.1. A calendar of training events offered or sponsored.

1.16.2. The ability for participants to register for training.

1.16.3. Access to all eLeamIng opportunities offered through this program.

1.17. The Contractor may collect registration fees from training participants,
excluding training participants attending the Initial Training on Addiction and
Recovery and Families and Addiction quarterly trainings for training expenses
that exceed the amount funded by the Department.

1.18. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of 85% of revenue generated from

1.15.

1.16.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

registration fees collected are reinvested to enhance the training program, as
approved by the Department.

1.19. The Contractor shall increase sustainability of the training program by
leveraging resources to increase and expand the number of training
opportunities offered.

1.20. The Contract shall conduct a project kick-off meeting with the Department
and identified project staff within 20 business days of the contract effective
date to review:

1.20.1. Contract requirements:

1.20.2. Initial work plan; and

1.20.3. Initial timelines.

"1:21': The'Contractor'shall provlde'a work plan and timelih"^td'th~e"Departfh'^t tlTat'
defines the goals, objectives, activities, deliverables, and due dates to the
Department for approval, ensuring:

1.21.1. The Initial work plan and timeline are provided to the Department within
10 business days of the project kick-off meeting.

1.21.2. Changes to work plans or timelines are approved by the Department prior
to implementation.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide an evaluation to the Department for approval
within 10 business days following the kick-off meeting that specifies how
trainings will be evaluated.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information In

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement
in accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall provide written monthly progress reports to the
Department regarding accomplishment of contract goals and performance
measures. The Contractor shall ensure reports include, but are not lirnited

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Exhibit B Coniractor Initials
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire , ,
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders
RFP-2021-8DAS-05-TRAIN-01 Page 6 of 9 Dale Q/ y



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

to:

3.1.1. A summary of the work performed during the previous month.

3.1.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues and suggested mitigation
strategies for each.

3.1.3. Scheduled trainings for the.follov^ing quarter.

3.1.4. A summary of evaluation results from services provided during the
previous month.

3.1.5. Updates to the work plan.
/

3.2. The Contractor shall complete and submit an annual report no later than 60
days after the end of each state fiscal year that includes, but is not limited to:

.3-.2.1.. A_cpiT!pJete_prpgramjDyeryi.ew.

3.2.2. Accomplishments towards"program"goa)s~ahd"perfor^ measures.

3.2.3. End of year financial report, including revenue reinvested.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall collect a completed evaluation sheet from no less than
85% of participants who attend a training event.

4.2. The Department will monitor performance of the contract by trainee
satisfaction survey results that reflect an 85% or higher rating of trainee
satisfaction through evaluation results submitted.

4.3. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department
to enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program
delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.4. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

4.5. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein,
the State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services they will provide to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services to persons with limited English proficiency,
people who are deaf or have hearing loss, are blind or have low vision,
or who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract
with_the_State-of-New-Hampshir8,-Department-of-Health-and-Human-
Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New Hampshire
and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the
United States Department of Health and Human Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or
use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials' produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1'. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records shall be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
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EXHIBIT B

to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services,
and any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports
and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
-Contract-are to be performed after-the end-of-the term-of this Gontract-and/or-
-survive the termination of the Contract)-shall terminate, provided however,
that if. upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall
disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of
such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training fpr Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Workforce

EXHIBIT C

1.

2.

3.

4.

1.1.2.

1.1.3.

Payment Terms

This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 36.74% Federal Funds

1.1.1. Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Block Grant
(SAPTBG). as awarded on 10/1/19. by the Department of Health
and Human Services. Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA), Center for Substance Abuse
Treatment. CFDA 93.959. FAIN TI083041.

NH State Opioid Response Grant (SOR). as awarded on 9/30/18
by the Department of Health and Human Services. Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA),
Center for Substance Abuse Treatment. CFDA 93.788 FAIN
TI081685.- - '

NH PartneTship for Suc^ss Initiative Grant (PFS2) as awarded on
9/30/15. by the Department of Health and Human Services,
Substartce Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
(SAMHSA), Center for Substance Abuse Prevention CFDA
93.243, FAIN SP020796.

1.2. 47.68% Other Funds (Governor's Commission on Alchohol and Other
Drugs).

1.3. 15.58% General Funds.

For the purposes of this. Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred In the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-
2, Budget.

The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of the following month, unless otherwise specified
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred
in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice Is completed, dated
and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall be
net any other revenue received towards the services billed In fulfillment of this
agreement.

4.1. Backup documentation shall include, but is not limited to:

4.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT C

4.1.2. Timesheets and/or lime cards signed by both employee and
supervisor that support the hours employees worked for wages
reported under this contract.

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for
salaries and wages must be based on records that accurately
reflect the work performed.

4.1.3. Per 2 CFR 200.430 (iii) Labor records must reasonably reflect the
total activity for which each employee Is compensated, showing
percentages for time spent on activities under this contract and all
other activities (totaling no more than 100%).

4-2^ The following backup documentation may also be requested as needed:
4.2.1. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.2.1.1. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally unallowable-
— — uriless they are an integral part of a-conference grant' Or-r

specifically stated as an allowable expense in the FOA. Grant
funds may be used for light snacks, not to exceed $3.00 per
person for clients.

4.2.2. Cost center reports, submitted only as requested by the
Department.

4.2.3. Profit and loss report, submitted only as requested by the
Department.

5. In lieu of hard copies, alt invoices may be assigned an electronic slgr^ture and
emailed to invoicesforcontracts@dhhs.nh.qov. or Invoices may be mailed to:

Contract Manager for RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN
Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Services
105 Pleasant Street, Main Bidg., 3rd Floor North
Concord, NH 03301

6. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice ar^ if
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1J
Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of ̂ ryices. in
compliance with funding requirements.
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EXHIBIT C

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld. In whote or In part, in the event
of r>on-compliance with any Federal or State law, aile or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.-if needed and:

—justified. —. . . -

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
If any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more In
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7;28. Hl-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1.000,000 or more. ,

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by
Security arid Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit
an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200.
Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for AJcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Worlcforce

EXHIBIT C

Contractor shall be held liable for any slate or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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Budget
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Exhibit C-2

Budget
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTinCATION REGARDING DRUG4^REE WORKPLACE REQUIREfiflENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisbns agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151'5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as kJentified In StoUohs
1.11:and1.12ofthe General ProvisionsexeculethefoflowingCertification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulaUons implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contrar^rs). prior to award, that they wiH maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the

■-regulation provides that a grantee (and^by infefertce, sub-grantees atxl syb-contradors) that is a State
....rpay..e!.®ct to m^e ^par^ent in (iscafyeaMn lieu ofcwti^"^^
each^nt during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification, the certificate iset out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violatbn of the certificatbn shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commlssbner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It w3l or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. F^bllshing a statement notifying emptoyees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possessbn or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actbns that will be taken against emptoyees for violation of such

'  ■ ■ ■ prohibition;
12. Estal^hlng an ongoing drug-free awareness program toinform employees about .

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and emptoyce assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may l>e Imposed upon emptoyees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a roquirement that each employee to be engaged in the performar>ce of the grant be

given a copy of the statement r^uired by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

:  employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violatjon of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position litie, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was vwrking, unless the Federal agency

EiihiNl p - Certificabon regardirtfl Drug Frw Verxlor InilUlt
Wc«kpl8ce Requirements o // o
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shali lnciude the
identincation number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the fdiowing actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. TaJdng appropriate personnel action against such an empioyee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the RehabHKation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such empioyee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free wofkplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the 8lte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

?-4'Zoza
Date Name

Tide

/endor Name;

lame: . /
iUe:

iMl.Extiibit 0 - Certifcalion rsgsrdmg Drug Fre# Vendor inldals
Wof1<place Requirements P z/-
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New Hampshir« Department of Health and Human Setvicea
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CEffyriFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identifi^ in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101 -121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and hjrther agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US department of health and human services - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate apt^lcable program covered):
•Temporary Asslsiance to Needy Famines under Title IV-A
'Child ̂ pport Enforcement Program under Title lV-0
"Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Tide IV

fiw undersign^ certifies, to ̂  best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of CongrMs In

.  : connectKW with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amertdment, or'
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sut)-conlractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for.
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Cortgress In connection with this
Federal cohtracL grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accord^ce with Its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certifjcation be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Induding subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify ar>d disclose accordingly,'

This ceftiflcalion is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a dvil penalty of not less than SIO.CXK) and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

VendorName^^ )

.9- ̂ ■-107^0

Exhibit E - Cettifkation Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials
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Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTFRS

The Vendor Identified |n Section 1.3 o# the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 reganJIng OebarmenI
Suspension, and Other RospohslWUty Matters, and further agrees to have the Conlraaor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certificatloh:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTJFICATION
1. By signing.and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inablNty of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of partldpalion In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or exptanatlon will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary

a,certifica_tion.pr^_explariatiori,.shall.disqualify.such person from participation in
this transact!^,

3. The certification In this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was. placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If It Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this tronsaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal («^tract) fe submitted if et any time the prospective primery participanil ieems
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction." "partJcfpant." "person," "primary covered transaction." "prlndpal." "proposal," and
"vduntarify excluded," as used in Ovs dausa, have the meanings set out in the Dofintliora and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submittir^ this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingty enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
frorii participalion in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
dause titled "Certificatlcn Regarding Debarment. Suspension. IneligibiUty and Voluntary Exdusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modificatjon, in all lower tier covered
tiansactions and In ail solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective partidpant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is i>ot desired, suspended. Ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determmes the eligibility of its principals. Each
partidpant may, but Is not requved to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shaH be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render In good feilh the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F-Certificatign Regarding Debarment Suspension Vendor hilials
And Other ResponslbtBty Uaflersutfw nespgnsmtmy M«ner3 O iJ t h.
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Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In ̂ 8 ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions. If a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred. InellgiWe. or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmont. declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have rrol within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dvS judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In ^
•  connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a pxjbllc (Federal, State or local)

transaction or a contract under a public transaction: violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, thefl, forgery. hrihPfy fakifir.;>tKvn nr destruction of _

1  recpjsli^, iOisldDg false statements, or receiving.stolen.property;
11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity

(Federal, Slate or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In parBoraDh (Dfb)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-yoar period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactione (Federal, State Of local) tarmlnaied for cause or defauH.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification; such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and Its principals;
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl. declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participdnt shaM attach an explanation to thfs proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier partidpanl further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) thai It wID
include tWs dause entitled ■Certification Regarding Dabarment, Suspension, Ineliglbllity, and
Voiuntaiy Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in a8 lower tier covered
transaclbns and in aU solidtatiofw for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name

^d'ZoiD ,
Da'e N^:

ExbbftF-CertBtoation Regarding Dabamwitt, Suspension Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAiNING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees by signature of (tie Contractor's
r^resentatfve as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Vendor wtR. comply, and will require any subgrantoes or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimihetion requirements, which may include;

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discnminating, either in employm^t practices or in
the deltvery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the crvil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. RecipierTts of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in emptoyment practices or in the delivery of services or

..beneftts..on.the basis of.race. color..religion, national origln,.and sex.. .The Act lncludes..EquaI
Employment,OppoftunUy. Plan requiremenis;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2(X]0d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, cotor. or national origin in any program or activity):

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohtoits recipients of Federal firandal
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to emptoyment and the delivery of
services or ti^nefits; in any program or activi^.

- the Americans with Disabilities Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimtndion and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. Slate and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discriminstion Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohbrts discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not Include
employment dl^mlnatibn;
- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Depsftnient of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminatlon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the lav^ for falth-t>8sed and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based ar>d neightertiood organizations:

- 28 C.F.R. pL 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub, L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Emplo^ Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certiflcdtion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

exhft>itG
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Exhibit 0

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
discnmination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
Winst a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights to
the apglcable. contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services arid
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representattve as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foilowirKi
certification: '

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Date

Vendor Name: A)U /k>lS'er'~

■

17Harrie:
A)

ExhbitG-  . , • ^ Vendor Initlala all
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Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 10^227, Part 0 - Environmental Tobacco SmoKe, also known as the Pro-Chlfdren Act of 1994
(^). requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or teased or .
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either '
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal granL contract. Joan, or loan guarantee. The
law ̂ s not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day arxf/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responstole enOty.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Geriefal Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Section l.ll and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followinq
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonabie efforts to comply with
alLapplicable provisions of Public Law 103r227. part C, known as the Pro-Children A<A of1994..

Vendor Name;

Exhibit H - Certification Rooanliiy] , Vendor InHiels
Erwironmenlal Tobecco Smoke q >/ , , - y,
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILrTY

ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

AGREEMENT

The Vendor idCTtified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply wHh J^ Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 arxJ 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covei-ed Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
dflFederai Re^^^ ~

C. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term In gcrtinn 1fin nf Titla
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meanirtg as the term "rlftgignatftrt rprnrrl got"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaoreaatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health car© operations'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TrtleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

"HiPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy end Se^hty of individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendmente thereto.

i. "Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term "IndivkJuaT in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall indude a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164;501fg).

j, "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health ;
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health;
informatJpn* In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Busineiss Associate from or on behalf Of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendof l7iUial9 M-: :
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 1W. 103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Infoimation at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or ind^pherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is develop^ or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American Natiorial Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - A!) terms not otherwise defined hemin shall havp the meaning^ _
iestablished uhdw 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162'ahd 164", as arri^d^ from tir^^ tiiiie, and thie
HITECH
Act,

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Infonhatlon.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Inforrrtation (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under

; Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business A^ciate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, rhatntaln or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below: or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (I)
reasonabte assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate. In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreemerit. disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying!
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclo^re and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disdosure, the Business

3/2014 E<hibi*l I kwtiah
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the F^vacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHUn violation of

such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obltaatfona and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Assooate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer irnrtiediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the

—protected health informatfon of the Covered Entity. - - - -

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health informatiori involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected heaith information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findir>gs of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notificaticn Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HiPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provkJed under Section 3 {!). The Covered Entlty
shall be con^dered a direct third party benefidary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI:

5/3014 E«hibii I VonOor iniltBft _
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnificalion from such
t^uslness associates who shail be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices a!)
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Withiii ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the

.  requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

_!!!•_ __ business d^ of receiving a written request from Cqve^ Entity for an
individual contained lri~a'De^gnS"e^

S^, the ̂ siness Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for "
amendrrient arxJ incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disdosures as virouki be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Iridlvidual for an accounting of disdosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for ah accounting of disdosures of PHI, Business Associate shallmake available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to futfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disdosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. Intheeventany individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fbrwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Bu^ness
Assodate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Assodale
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Assodate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or :
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Busine^ Assodate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreernent, to such PHI and limit further uses and disdosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasiWe, for so long as Business .
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Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole disaetion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to"
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Oblloatlona of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitatjon(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate urxler this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that'Cbver^ Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restricdon may affe^ Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termlf>atlon for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge;of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Imrriedlateiy
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretaiv-

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. Ail terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall haye the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
nece^ry to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. tnteroretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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6. Sgflrftflfltlo"- It any lemi or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
per8on(8) or drcuinslance Is held invalid, such invaUdity shall not affect other tenna or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or oondltlon; to this end the
tefms and conditlor^s of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

SMfVival- Provialona In this Exhibit I regarding the use end disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense end indamnWcatlon provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oepartment of Health and Human Services

The State T

Signature of ̂Jthorlzed Representative

Name 6f-Aljthorized Repres^tetive

\)\rje.c.ky^
Title of Authorized Representative

^ 1
Date ' 7

/t// /jkALcJdfS.
_ Name of the Vendor^^

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

?-^-20Z£>
Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDtNG ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACTfFFATAtCOMPLlAMCg

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Acl (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program numtwr for grants
5. F>rogram source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. .. Principle.place of performance . , ..
9. Unique idenlifier.of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. I^ore than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation: information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or sward anr^ndment is made.
The Vendor identified in S^on 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability arid Transparency Acl. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all appllcable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability' end Transparency Act.

Date Name:

ExhibitJ - C«rtificallon ft«aardlnflth« Federal Funding Vendor Initials
Aeeountefailily And Tranfipercrcy Ad (FFATA) Convene® On ̂a')A
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
beiow listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ^ "7/3^ P

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,:
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3...,Doe8.the public.have.access to information about the compensaiian.of.the.fixeajtiyes.in.your.
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (i 5 tj.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer .to #3 above Is NO, please answer the foliowing:

4. The names and compensation of the five most hi^ly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUJOHHS;n07t3
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New Hampshire Depiartment of Health and Human Services

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. DefinHions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
uiiauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
iriformatlon." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
iM.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident -
Handling^ Guide, f^ational tnstrtute-of-Standards and Technology; U;S. D^rtmenf
of Commerce.

3. "Confidenlial Information" or "ConTidentlal Data" means all conftdential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limrtation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

.. Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Servic^. (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of wtilch coHection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is govemed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Informadon (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Sodal Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business Msoclate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA'means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Inddenr means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) (o gain unauthorized acce^ to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or dental of service, the unauthorized u^ of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device mispiacement; loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, ali of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disctosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or deiegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will bo considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI orconfidenliaj DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information' (or 'PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Indrvidual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, txometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked■
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's makJen
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentlfiat>le Health
Inform^lon at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Infomiation that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or eridorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidentiallnformation.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidentlai lnfonmation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all'its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confrdential Informalion in response to a
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additiOTal
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.
4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
ajiy o^r purpW|W that are not indkaled in this Contract.

"■ * "S- ■The Contractor. agrees to grant access to the* data to~th8~authorized representattyes
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Corifidentia) Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet, /

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmittirig DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground MaH Service. End User may only transmit ConfidentiaJ Data yia certified ground
mail virithin the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open vyireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private networic (VPN) when
remotely transrhitting via an open wireless network.

0. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote commuriication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
iristalled on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User wHI
structure the Folder and access piivlieges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information, SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24

11, vyireless Devices. If Errd User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, an'
data; must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. Mer such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, uniess. otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connectkxi wHh the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implementation of
dpud imputing, doud service or doud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact Slate of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential infomiation.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all eiectronlc and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in section IV. A2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Ooud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-yirai. anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
irifrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations.-When no longer in use, electronic media contalnlng-State of "
New-Hampshire data"shan be rendered unrecoverable via .a secure wipe
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example.

:  degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-83, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media ^niUzatton. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and wjII provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory ar>d professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Slate end Contractor priorlo destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Conlrartor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
cqnfideritiai information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2, The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Departmwt
confidential informalion throughout the information lifecyde. where applicable, (from
creation, trartsformation. use, storage and secure destniction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department conrictential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabililies are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systerns and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential informaticn.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the ser^ces for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
-program of an -Internal- proce^ -or—processes - that v defines- specific- security
expectations, and monHoring-oornpttanceloeecwity foquirernente that-at-a ̂ mirrfmunr
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirerrients.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

6. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 1M.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business. Associate Agreement
(BAA) wibi the Departnrrant and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities ̂ at may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an altomate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, of the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Oepartmem and the Contractor chariges.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New HampshifB
Of Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prkx express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In me event of any security breach Contractor shaH
make efforts to invesUgate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of respond and recovery from
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the breach, tncluding but not limited to: credit nr>onitoring services, malBng costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach. •

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Infomiatlon, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions Of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to estoblish and mairrtain appropriate administrativertochnicafrand
physical safeguarxte-to-protect the-confidentt^ of-the Confidential Data and to^
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less tfian the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Slate of New Hampshire, Department of information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https;//www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Ihfomiation Technology policies, guideiirtes. standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained imder this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The CcntraclornfHiSt ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Confract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidentiat Information only if encrypted and being
sent to: and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V5.,unup<w,i:(m/18. E.hW,K Conwdoflniti.^
OHHS Information

SocurHjr Rcqulrvmentsimjr Rcqwrvments . . O j/ _
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidenbal Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiabte data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized per^s
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
bloririetricldentiflers. etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative fdes containing personally identifiable information, and in ail cases,
such data must be encrypted at ad times when In trarisit, at rest, or when
stored on portat>le media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used arwJ
.. .__di?clo^... using .appropriate safeguards. _ as.. determined. by_ a„risktbased

assessmenl.of Ihecircuraslances.involved ,

understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential infonnation secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

1.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their Ef>d Users. DHHS
reserves _the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Conh'act, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein; HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediatety, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Inddenls and Breaches involvlr>g PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notifk^tipn

, procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine tf)e risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

..vs. La»iup<tato. 10/09^10 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS InfonnsOon

S«cufflyRaqwremenls q y/ \ ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine ̂ ether Breach rw)tificalion is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

VI.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

PERSONS TO CONTACT

A DHHS Privacy Officer; '

DHHSPrivacyOfric8r@dhhs.nh.gov

B, DHHS Security Officer.

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

V&. Lftst update lOAWie &^btl K
DHHS Wofmation

Security Roquiremehts
PageSofd
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby ccnify that NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL

AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business

in New Hampshire on November 26, 19S5. I funhcr cenify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's olTice

have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is conecmcd.

Business ID: 89242

Certificate Number: 0004885821

Urn

Hi%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 7th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE TRAINING

INSTITUTE ON ADDICTIVE DISORDERS is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on October 22, 2010. I funhcr cenify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned. /

Business ID; 637806

Certificate Number; 0004932130

u.

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

Thereto set my hand and cause to be alTixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this-18th day of June A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Linda Brewer
(Name of the elected Officer ol .he Corpora.ion/LLC: cannol be con.rac, signatory

d/b/a New ^ r.niinselofs Associatien

(Corporation/LLC Name)

held on Januai^ 23^ ?m°a'lUfcVa of the SorL^hafe°hofder?''®°'°''^ ®"''
(Dale) uireciors/sharenolders were present and voting.

VOTED; That Alexandra Hamfti President /

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory) ^ P®'®""'

Ham'pstee TraMnrin^mnl^^^^ ^ ^firee Counselors Association d/h/a Ner.r,t,P'„t:rc;rcrafon/ LLC) ®3'eements «i,h the Slate

Stions^LnSy " PPP"®®'® 'P® =" =-h
Dated: 6/4/2020 UAtU-

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Linda Brewer
Title; NHADACA Board President Elect

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
GATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

07/31/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Byse Insurance - Laconia

208 Union Avenue

Laconia NH 03246

contact Loretta Snell

(800)639-2973 (603)524.0748

AGGRESS' Loretta(®hpminsurance.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICt

INSURER A
CNA Insurance

INSURED

NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association

NH Training Institute on Addictive Disorders

130 Pembroke Road. Suite 100

CONCORD NH 03301

INSURERS Travelers Property Casualty Co of America (A/R)

INSURER C
Citizens of Illinois - 10714

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL2063030576 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

InSr"
LTR

irooT
JNSQ VWD

POLICY 6FF
(MM/PD/YYYY)

POLICY exp
(MM/OO/YYYY)TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMACE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

6025655757 06/30/2020 06/30/2021

MEG 6XP (Any On« o««^on)

PERSONAL k AOV INJURY

CENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q n LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

BAIL

2,000.000

300.000

10,000

2.000.000

4.000.000

4.000.000

S 1.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

C0M8JNE0 SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accidcnil

S 1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (Par person)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NOl>FOWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par acekJenO

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPar accidentl

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAGE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes. descnbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATLJTE
OTH
ER

0 6JUB0413N90820 05/03/2020 05/03/2021 e.L. EACH ACCIDENT
100,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
100,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500,000

Misc Professional Liability
LHVH29508300 06/30/2020 06/30/2021

Per Occurrence

Aggregate

Deductible

1.000,000

3.000,000

1.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS' LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached 11 more space Is required)

States for which statutory Workers Compensation is provided: NH
Owners/Officers/Members excluded from Workers Compensation coverage: Board of Directors.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH. DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORO



Additional Named Insureds

Other Named Insureds

NH Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Additional Named Insured

OfaPPINF (02/2007) COPYRIGHT 2007, AMS SERVICES INC



New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association
\  New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders

130 Pembroke Road, Suite 100, Concord, NH 03301

\  / 603-225-7060 NHADACA.ORG

Mission Statement

NHADACA's mission is to provide quality education,
workforce development, advocacy, ethical standards and
leadership for addiction professionals. We empower

efforts in prevention treatment and recovery.



NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31. 2019 and 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE

COMPANIES PR.ACT1CE SECTION

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

We have audited the accompanying financial statements New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's (the
Association), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31. 2019 and the related statement of activities and
changes in net assets, functional e.xpenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generallv accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maiiuenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material missiatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibilit>' is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material missiatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material missiatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity s internal control. Accordingly, we
e.xpress no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of New
Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association as of December 31. 2019 and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's 2018 financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated April 18, 2019. in our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31. 2018, is consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited financial siatemems from whicii it has been derived.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
May 12,2020



NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2010 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

Ncl Assets Without Net Assets With

Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions 2019 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expense

s 178.044

980

6.104

s 31.608 S 209.652 S

980

6.104

191.679

7.364

6.180

185.128 31.608 216.736 205.223

FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT, at cost

Less accumulated depreciation

76,552

(61,170)

- 76,552

(61.170)

66,570

,  (53,149)

15.382 - 15,382 13.421

LONG TERM ASSETS

Securitv deposit 2.800 2.800 2.800

Total Assets 203.310 31.608 234.918 221.444

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses 1.431 1.431 3.357

1.431 - 1.431 3.357

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrctions

201,879

31.608

201.879

31.608

183.016

35.071

201.879 31.608 233.487 218.087

Total liabilities and net assets s 203.310 s 31.608 S 234.918 S 221.444

See Notes to Financial Statements



NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

2019

Net Assets Without Net Assets With

Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions Total

2018

Total

Res'eniie

Grant revenue S

Contributions, in-kind

Training fees

Co-sponsorships

Membership fees

Merchandise sales, net of

direct costs of SO

Other revenue

51 1.034 S

8,555

145,258

2,500

7,104

50

4,404

18,586 S 529.620 S

8,555

145.258

2,500

7,104

50

4.404

418,268

1  1,150

106,277

8,184

8,71 1

1  1 1

889

Total revenues 678.905 18.586 697.491 553.590

Net assets released from

donor imposed restrictions 31.608 (31.608)

Expenses

Program expenses

Administrative expenses

Fundraising

652,568

24.340

5,183

- 652.568

24.340

5.183

513,866

20,875

2,384

Total expenses 682.091 682.091 ^  537.125

Increase (Decrease) in net assets 18.863 (3.463) 15.400 16.465

Net assets, beginning of year 183,016 35,071 218,087 201,622

Net assets, end of year S 201.879 S 31,608 S 235.487 S 218,087

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 L 2019 AND 201S

See Independent Auditors' Report

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 15,400 $ 16,465

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities;

Disposal of furniture & equipment - 2,189

Depreciation 8,021 8,916

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable 6,384 2,165

Prepaid expenses 76 (U17I)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accrued expenses (1,926) 3,357

Net cash provided by operating activities 27,955 31,921

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash paid for furniture & equipment (9,982) (3,105)

. Net cash (used) by investing activities . (9,982) (3,105)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 17,973 28,816

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 191,679 162,863

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 209,652 $ 191,679

See Notes to Financial Statements

-4-



NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 L 2019 AND 2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

2019 2018

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

In-kind contributions $ 8,555 $ 1 1.150

Non-cash contributions $ - S 81

See Notes to Financial Statements

-5-



NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR

THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Management Total Total

Services and General Fundraising 2019 2018

Salaries and wages $ 260,092 $  16,602 $ $ 276,694 $ 222,007

Employee benefits 21,434 1,368 - 22,802 32.573

Payroll taxes 20,697 1,321 - 22,018 17,437

Scholarships/sponsorships 24,31 1 - ♦ 24,31 1 8,765
Legal and accounting fees 9.314 594 - 9.908 9.449

Professional services 108,987 - - 108,987 86,161

Trainer fees 72.435 - - 72,435 47.431

Conferences and meetings 20,41 1 - - 20,41 1 14,915

Insurance 4,071 260 - 4,331 4,334

Travel expenses 38,944 - - 38,944 26,592 ■

Office supplies and expenses 16,567 1.057 • 17,624 7.499

Postage 631 - • 631 43

Telephone 1,656 106 • 1.762 1.680

Education 320 - - 320 520

Marketing & communication 5,183 - 5,183 10,366 4,768

Bank and credit card fees 20 - - 20 -

Board expenses 2,389 153 - 2.542 2.684

Occupancy expenses 34,968 2,232 ■ - 37,200 37,200

Depreciation 7,540 481 - 8.021 1 1.105

Miscellaneous expenses 2,598 166 - 2.764 1.962

$ 652,568 $  24.340 $  5.183 $ 682.091 $ 537.125

See Notes to Financial Statements

-6-



NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors AssocialioiTs (the Association) mission is to
provide quality education, workforce development, advocacy, ethical standards and leadership for
addiction professionals. The Association empowers efforts in prevention, treatment and recovery. The
Association is supported primarily through private funding and public support.

The summary of significant accounting policies of the Association is presented to assist in understanding
the Association's financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of NH

Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's management who is responsible for their integrity
and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles and have
been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization maintains its accounting records on the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the obligation is incurred. The Organization
reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets:
net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues
generated by receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and
receiving interest from operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-
related services, raising contributions, and performing administrative functions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets
that are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assts, either temporarily
or permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time restriction ends
or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, the net assets are restricted.

Cash equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Association considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents, excluding amounts the use of
which is limited by Board designation or restriction. At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Association
had no cash equivalents.

Support and revenue
The Association receives support primarily through a single grant from the State of New Hampshire.
The Association would likely be unable to continue the scope of operations conducted in 2019 and 2018
in the absence of this or similar funding. ' ••

Donated Materials and Services

The Association records the value ofdonaled goods and services when there is an objective basis
available to measure their value. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, in-kind
contributions were $8,555 and $1 1,150, respectively. The Association also received $0 and $81 in non-
cash contributions for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

-7-



NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)'

Equipment
Equipment is recorded at cost of purchase or, if contributed, at fair market value at the dale of donation.
If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as net assets with
donor restriction support. In the absence of such stipulation, contributions of equipment are recorded as
net assets without donor restriction support. The Association depreciates equipment over a 5-7 year
useful life using the straight-line method. Depreciation expense was S8,02I and $1 1,105 for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 20)8. Equipment purchases with a cost under $500 are not capitalized.

Income taxes

The Association has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income
taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Association is further classilled as an
organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant
tax positions of the Organization are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its
determination of whether any amounts are subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Organization
follows the guidance of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes,
related to uncertain income taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not for recognition
and recognition of lax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. All significant lax
positions have been considered by management. It has been determined that it is more likely than not
that all tax positions would be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. Accordingly, no
provision for income ta.xes has been recorded.

Functional allocation of items

The costs of providing various program, management and rental services have been summarized in the
statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the dale of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Comparative Financial Information:
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not
by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with the Association's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.
from which the summarized information was derived.

Financial Instruments:

The carrj'ing value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expense and accrued
expenses are stated at carrying cost at December 31, 2019 and 2018, which approximates fair value due
to the relatively short maturity of these instruments.



NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cost Allocation

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supponing services benefited based on estimates that are based on
their relationship to those activities, consistently applied. Those expenses include payroll and payroll
related expenses and occupancy costs. Occupancy costs are allocated based on square footage. Payroll
and payroll related expenses are based on estimates of time and effort. Other cost allocations are based
on the relationship between the expenditure and the activities benefited.

New Accounting Pronouncement

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Association adopted the requirements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board's Accounting Standards Update No. 2016- 14—Not-for-Pront Entities
(Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (ASU 2016- 14). This
Update addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in
information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of

-  information provided about expenses and investment return between not-for-profit entities. A key
change required by ASU 2016-14 is the net asset classes used in these financial statements. Amounts
previously reported as unrestricted net assets are now reported as net assets without donor restrictions
and amounts previously reported as temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net
assets are now reported as net assets with donor restrictions.

NOTE 2 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Association receives a substantial amount of its support from government agencies. A significant
reduction in the level of this support, if this were to occur, may have an effect on the Association's
programs and activities. Grants often require the fulfillment of certain conditions as set forth in the
instrument of the grant. Failure to fulfill the conditions could result in the return of funds to grantors.
Although the return of funds is a possibility, the board of directors deems the contingency unlikely,
since by accepting the grants and their terms, it has made a commitment to fulfill the provisions of the
grant.

Approximately 67% and 61% of total support was derived from a single grant from the State of New
Flampshire for years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 3 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through May 12, 2020, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require
disclosure. It has been determined that no subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this
period.

-9-



NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2019 and 2018

NOTE 4 CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Association maintains cash balances in several accounts at a local bank. These accounts are insured

by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the
Association may have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured amount.
Management does not believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the
Association. At December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Association had no uninsured cash balances.

NOTE 5 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair values of assets measured on a recurring basis at December 31 were as follows:

Other

Unobservable

Inputs

2019 Fair Value Level (2)

Accounts receivable $ 980 S 980

2018

Accounts receivable $ 7.364 S 7.364

The fair value of the accounts receivable are estimated at the present value of expected future cash
flows.

NOTE 6 LEASE COMMITMENT

On December 19, 2013 the Association signed a lease agreement for office space in Concord, NH. The
term of the agreement is a six-year lease beginning March I. 2014 and commencing on February 29,
2020. An addendum to the lease was signed with a term of two years beginning March 1, 2020 and
commencing on February 28, 2022. Total rent related to this lease was $37,200 and $37,200 during the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Future minimum rental requirements for the years ended December 31 are:

2020 $39,200

2021 39.600

2022 6.600

Total $ 85.400

NOTE 7 COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Employees of the Organization are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of
services and other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but
unpaid as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 in the amount of $1,431 and $3,357, respectively.

- 10-



NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 8 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Association has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. The Associatioir s primary sources of support are grants and
training fees. Most of that support is held for the purpose of supporting the Association's budget. The
Association had the following financial assets that could be readily made available within one year
to fund expenses without limitations;

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Less amounts subject to
donor imposed restriction

2019

209,652

980

121042)

2018

$ 191,679

7,364

r35.07n

NOTE 9 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Association has net assets designated for various future projects and events. These funds are
comprised of the following as of December 31:

Cash reserve account $_

2019

15.301

2018

NOTE 10 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposed or periods at December 31:

Subject to expenditure for specific purpose: 2019 2018

BRSS TACs Contract $3,758 $3,758

Bank of NH Grant 4.185 4.720

JSI 8790 contract 3,863 3.863

Hvpertherm Hope Grant 6,500 -0-

NHCF 500 -0-

Meredith Savings Bank 3,177 -0-

Dobles Foundation 9,279 15,000

Harvard Pilgrim -0- 5.000

Macoma Bank -0- 1,000

Lamprey Flealth Care -0- 1,499

Train it forward 346 230

Total net assets with donor restrictions $3I,6M .$35,070

- I I-



NHADACA Board List January 2019

Member Board Position Business Address Business Phone

Linda Brewer President Elect

State of NH EAP

129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-8947

603-393-6292

Christopher

Foster

At Large

Representative

Corporate Office

Amatus Health

10019 Reisterstown Rd #301

Owings Mills. MD 2117

410-469-8889

Diana Gibbs
At Large

Representative

North Country Health Consortium

262 Cottage St. Ste 230

Littleton. NH 03561

603-259-4871

603-259-3700x222

Christine

McKenna

Seacoast

Representative

GNCA/ Keystone Hall
91 Route 125

Kingston, NH 03848

603-658-0138

Alexandra

Hamel
President

Keystone Hall

615 Amherst St,

Nashua. NH 03063

603-816-3105

Doreen Boutin
Southern

Representative

Farnum Center

140 Queen City Ave

Manchester, NH 03103

603-263-3610

Angela Jones
North Country

Representative

PC Box 445

Franconia. NH 03580
603-616-2019

William Keating
At Large

Representative

Seacoast Mental Health Ctr

1145 Sagamore Avenue

Portsmouth. NH 03801

603-828-7783

Meredith

Senter

Central

Representative

Catholic Medical Center

8100 McGregor St.

Manchester, NH 03102

603-663-8072

vacant

Connecticut

Valley

Representative

Kelly Luedtke
Immediate Past

President

NHTI Concord's Community College

31 College Dr.

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-6484 ext. 4174

Lindsey

Ducharme
Treasurer

Horizons Counseling Center

25 Country Club Rd, Ste 705

Gilford, NH 03249

603-524-8005

Diane Fontneau
Student

Representative

Seacoast Mental Health Ctr

1145 Sagamore Avenue
Portsmouth. NH 03801

603-957-5825

Suzanne Thistle
Lakes Region

Representative

PO Box 251

Bristol, NH. 03222
603-630-3852

vacant Secretary



LICENSURE

EDUCATION

EXPERIENCE

DIANNE P. CASTRUCCI

Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor

Master of Education Degree. May 1993
Concentration: Counselor Education: Human Ser\'ices

Bachelor of Science Degree. May 1989
Major: Elementary Education Minors: Psychology and Human Services
Plymouth State College, Plymouth, N.H.

Executive Director. NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association, Concord,
N.H.— June 2012 - Present

Promoted to Executive Director in June 2012, the Chief Executive Officer of
NHADACA reports to the Board of Directors, provides leadership and direction in
the development and delivery of all activities and is responsible for the
organization's consistent achievement of its mission and financial objectives.
•  ensures the organizational operations and activities are provided in the higliest

quality manner within the fiscal and human resource limitations of the
organization.

•  administers and manages all grants, contracts, and agreements and informs the
Board of Directors of these and other commitments that involve the utilization

of agency operational and financial resources and/or staff and volunteer time.
•  ensures the fiscal integrity and stability of the organization.
•  staffs the day-to-day operations of the organization providing leadership to staff

and volunteers to effectively carry out their assigned responsibilities.
•  ser\'es as a spokesperson for the organization in public settings, consistent with

the mission, policies, and activities of the organization.

Training Institute Director. NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association/ NH
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders, Gilford, N.H. — Feb. 2004 -June 2012
Coordinates logistics of workforce development opportunities for substance abuse
prevention, intervention and treatment professionals throughout New Hampshire.
• consults with treatment and prevention professionals to identify specific training

topic needs and local or regional trainers with expertise on that topic.
• collaborates with co-sponsors for various events.
• contacts trainers, contracts their sendees and coordinates travel arrangements
• markets and advertises events by creating electronic/email flyers and printed

brochures and submits events for inclusion in training publications.
• maintains participant database including attendance, tuition and CE information.
• coordinates functions associated with presenting major conference and training

workshops of various sizes, and at various locations, statewide.

Board Administrator. NH Board of Licensing for Alcohol & Other Drug Use
Professionals, Concord, N.H. — September 201 1 - March 2012
Write Board correspondence, create agenda for and keep minutes at Board meetings,
organize professional packets for review, maintain databases, arrange and order
testing, database auditing, other administrative functions as assigned by the
chairperson of the board.
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Master Licensed Substance Use Outpatient Counselor. Horizons Counseling Center,
Gilford, N.H.— January 2006 - May 2013
Provide substance abuse services related to evaluation and group treatment
to individuals in an outpatient setting and facilitate various psycho-educational
groups including Project ADAPT to be held at, and in coordination, with the
Belknap County Department of Corrections.

Exit Counselor. Community Alcohol Information Program, Inc., Boscawen, Nashua
and Laconia, N.H. — July 2003 - November 2005
Conduct exit inicr\'icws for clients at the completion of the CAIP, Impaired Driver
Intervention Program for DWI first offenders. Attended PR! training October 2003.
• diagnosed, and refened as appropriate, DWI first offenders for alcohol

dependence and/or alcohol abuse upon file review and structured exit inter\'icw.

Licensed Substance Use Outpatient Counselor. James Foster & Associates,
Manchester, N.H. — October 2003 - July 2004
Provide substance abuse services related to evaluation and brief treatment

of individuals in an outpatient setting.

Corrections Counselor/Case Manager. NH Department of Corrections, Lakes
Region Facility, Laconia, N.H. — December 1998 - Februar>' 2004
Providing clinical serN'ices of inmates participating in a modified therapeutic
community treatment program (Summit House/Level 3 Substance Abuse Semces).
• chaired and participated on, professional development committees to detennine

staff training needs and involvement, VOITIS grant fund use, as well as planning
and coordination of multiple substance abuse training events for DOC staff.

•  super\'ised inmates In lectures, clinical groups, community meetings, clinical
staffing, individual counseling sessions and other clinical group activities.

• prepared/maintained clinical charts including evaluations, discharge summaries,
treatment transfer infonnation for parole and aftercare recommendations.

•  impacted the direction/implementation and planning of treatment ser\'ices
available to inmates incarcerated at the Lakes Region Facility.

Antioch New Enuland Adiiinct Faculty. Summit House Program, Lakes Region
Facility, Laconia, N.H. — May 2000 - May 2002
Field supemse and train graduate interns from the Antioch Graduate School of New
England in methods and practice of substance abuse counseling.
•  inter\'iew, accept or deny, teach/train and supers'ise master's level interns.
• communicate with professional seminar leaders.

Substance Use Counselor. N.H. Bureau of Substance Abuse Ser\'ices,
Multiple Offender Program, Laconia, N.H. — December 1993 - December 1998
Working as a clinical team member providing assessment, education and
inter\'ention ser\'ices to individuals convicted of multiple DWls.
• conducted intake/orientation, education, individual and group counseling,

evaluation and assessment ser\'ices relevant to client s substance use, medical,
psychological, legal and social history.

•  represented the program at official hearings of the Dept. of Motor Vehicles.
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Independent Contractor/Counselor. NH Department of Coireclions, First Step
Program, Lakes Region Facility, Laconia, N.H. — July 1997 - September 1997
Facilitated the substance abuse/psycho-educational group component to NH State
Prison inmates participating in the First Step Program. The course involved
providing 25-28 male inmates intervention services, 3 hours per week for 8 weeks.
• created curriculum including lesson outlines and client handouts.
•  facilitated psycho-educational course on substance abuse related issues with

difficult offender population.

Shelter Manauer. Task Force Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,

Plymouth, N.H.— February' 1992 - December 1993
Completed 40-hour crisis training for Task Force volunteer crisis-line and was hired
as the Shelter Manager four months later.
• communicated with DCYS/DCYF on crisis-related issues.

•  supported women in crisis at Plymouth Area Court sessions.
• coordinated/managed building functions, including monitoring clients, intakes,

general maintenance, food pantry and emergency supplies.
• presented training workshops on shelter regulations and procedures.

Editorial Assistant. Office of News Ser\'ices, Plymouth State College,
Plymouth, N.H.— August 1989 - November 1993
Associated with this office for four years starting as Administrative Secretary then
promoted to Editorial Assistant.
• produced internal and external desktop publications.
• created weekly and monthly events calendars to market college events.
• uTote and distributed news releases concerning student success.
• hired and super\'ised student office assistants.
• created purchasing documents for supplies and ser\ ices.
• utilized and maintained extensive computer databases.

•  submitted listings of college events to newspapers for publication.

OTHER

ACTIVITIES NH Governor's Commission Treatment Task Force 2018-Present

Legislative Commission on Primary Care Workforce Issues 2018-Present
NH LADC Board Peer Review Committee April 2013- March 2019
Associate Member of the Eleaming Guild October 2012-2014
Member of National Association of Forensics Counselors 2002-2012



Vacant Position Job Description

Training Institute Director
NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association

Requirements

•  Master s degree in business/marketing or human services field preferred.
•  Minimum of 5-years experience in training implementation and/or the substance use profession.
•  Conversant in the areas of substance use prevention, treatment and recovery.

•  Ability to read and understand basic subcontract/contract agreements with funders
•  Demonstrated leadership skills and ability to work independently.

•  Supervisory skills including the ability to assign work, evaluate work and discuss work
performance with supervisees.

•  Strong administrative, facilitation and organizational skills.
•  Computer skills sufficient to assist with website maintenance, oversee/conduct webinars using

Adobe Connect, data entry/Access database and event/membership management systems.
•  Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with other staff, funders, other

agencies and the general public.
•  Ability to meet light to medium physical demands of training set-up to include moving chairs and

tables, light cleaning, taking out garbage and carrying training equipment and materials.
•  Driver's license and personal vehicle to implement trainings happening outside of Concord, NH

Full-time position for Training Director of substance use and ancillary professionals. The coordinator
works with the Executive Director, other training staff and funders/stakeholders to identify training
needs for the profession/community of ancillary professionals and set up and implement series of
training events for various contracts and grants.

Duties

•  Support the general functions of the NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association
(NHADACA) as a whole and the specific functions of the NH Training Institute on Addictive
Disorders (NHTIAD)

•  Set up and implement training events within contract budget guidelines
•  Contract reporting and representing the agency in relation to training activities.
•  Along with Executive Director, supervise, evaluate, and assign work to training staff in support

of training implementation - assisting when needed to complete the tasks:
o  Perform training related activities processing registrations and payments, preparing CE

applications, and maintaining databases
o Contact, contract with and arrange for trainers for planned training events,
o Disseminate electronic information and published flyers regarding training events,
o Assist in the maintenance of a web site.

•  Administrative and other duties as assigned by the Executive Director and the Board of
Directors of NHADACA

Last Updated February 2020



CONTR/VCTOR NAME

K.ev-'Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Dianne Castrucci Executive Director S84,968 26% 522,484

Vacam Training Institute Director 560,320 43% 525,700


